
 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

1 
 

 
GWAC Members 
 

Ron Bernstein, GWAC Chair and President, 
RBCG, LLC  

Ron Ambrosio, Independent Energy 
Transformation Professional 

Shawn Chandler, Director, Guidehouse  

David Forfia, Principal Consultant, Utilicast  

Yashar Kenarangui, Xcel Energy 

Matt McDonnell, Current Energy Group, 
Managing Partner 

Farrokh Rahimi, Executive Vice President, Open 
Access Technology International, Inc.    

Aaron Snyder, Dir. of Grid Technology 
Consulting, EnerNex        

Leonard Tillman, Partner, Balch & Bingham, LLP                                                    

 

GWAC Associates & Emeritus 

Mark Knight, Emeritus 

 

GWAC Guest Speaker 

Matt McDonnell, Managing Partner, Current 
Energy Group 

 

GWAC Friends 

Peter Fitzgerald, INS 

Larsh Johnson, Advisor, Stem 

 

 

Volkmar Kunerth, Accentec Technologies 

Alaa Mahjoub, independent Digital Business 
Advisor 

Jeremy Roberts, Green Button Alliance 

 

Guest Speakers 

Guest Speaker Bill Gutierrez, PNNL 

Guest Speaker Shan Osborn, PNNL 

Guest Speaker Teresa Carlon, PNN 

 

 

PNNL Support 

Jaime Kolln, PNNL GWAC Administrator 

Susie McGuire, GWAC Coordinator 

Grace Borland, GWAC Financial Coordinator 

 

 

21  attendees 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

2 
 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

3 
 

 

Jaime Kolln gave an overview of today’s meeting. He asked if everyone had reviewed the meeting 
minutes and asked for a motion to approve. 

Ron Ambrosio made the motion to approve the October meeting minutes. 

David Forfia asked if any edits had been received and Susie McGuire noted that there were no edits sent 
to her. 

Ron Bernstein said he would abstain from the vote. 

Shawn Chandler seconded the motion.  

A group vote was conducted; no one objected, and the minutes were approved. 

Jaime thanked the GWAC participants who have let the meeting hosts know if advance if they are not 
able to attend the monthly meetings. It helps with meeting planning and in checking for quorum. 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

4 
 

 

 

Jaime reviewed the Conference list. 

Aaron Synder will be attending DistribuTech San Diego and PES T&D in Chicago. 

Ron B. reviewed the October ASHRAE meeting on decarbonization and electrification of the built 
environment.  Decarbonization is their primary objective and has been for the last couple of years.   
They are focusing on mechanisms to create standards and guidelines for implementing reduced carbon 
efforts in buildings.  Much of the work has to do with the type of equipment and refrigeration that’s 
being used.  

They have developed a training program on decarbonization and the built environment. Ron has been 
asked to be one of the trainers. He will be doing that the first week in May 2026 for a worldwide online 
training program. One session will be held at the ASHRAE show coming up in Las Vegas which he will 
participate in and another in the fall.  Each one is a four hour training session. Participants will get a 
certification upon completion.  The material will focus not only on decarbonization and the built 
environment but also on grid-related activities and building-to-grid interactions. Ron is excited to be 
involved with this effort. 

Matt McDonnell attended the NARUC Annual meeting in Seattle.  Matt noted that he sees increasing 
interest and momentum activity around distribution connected capacity as a means of meeting both 
load growth and optimization of the distribution system.  



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

5 
 

Matt McDonnell also said there are different models being proposed now on how distribution assets are 
procured and what role the utility may or may not have in ownership over those assets. A DCP 
framework has been proposed.  There is a white paper from CPA and Sparkfun about it.  Minnesota is 
actively considering it particularly Excel Energy. 

Matt also said that there is a need to optimize the distribution system, and distributed assets including 
distributed storage, which he feels is a great way to do that.  Matt said that an open question for the 
GWAC is what the right procurement pathway is, and how do we instill and ensure that there are still 
vibrant, competitive opportunities.  

One idea that he solicited at the meeting was the question of open standards and interoperability 
communications.  

Jaime said he and Matt can talk more offline, but he added the reference coordination framework that 
he has been involved in developing, ties to grid services work that Matt has worked on in the past. There 
may be a good opportunity for them to collaborate and move this area forward. 

Jaime suggested that he and Matt talk more after the Thanksgiving holiday. 

Action: Jaime and Matt to talk more in December. Matt noted he is not able to attend the GWAC 
meeting in Tampa. 

Action:  Ron Bernstein will send information about the World Energy Conference, to be held in Abu 
Dhabi in April 2026 to add to the list. 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

6 
 

 

Call for Candidates 

Jaime noted that a couple of applications have come in.  He asked the Council to consider certain 
attributes that they would like to see in a candidate to keep the diversity of the expertise of the Council.  
Any suggestions can be sent to Jaime Kolln, Ron Bernstein and Susie McGuire.  

The call is open to anyone who wishes to apply. 

A question came up about the URL address of previously published paper by GWAC. We can talk offline 
about maintain old links for papers (Susie, Jaime, Teresa, Bill) 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

7 
 

 

Jaime reminded the GWAC that Shawn Chandler is the new GridWise Alliance Liaison for GWAC. Shawn 
is attending a variety of meetings with that group. He will help the Alliance understand who GWAC is 
and how we are different from them.  Jaime said that they may benefit from the educational aspect of 
GWAC.  

Shawn said that he is happy to help connect people to key contacts at GridWise Alliance. 

Jaime said that the GridWise Alliance may be interested in the material that GWAC presented at the RE+ 
meeting in Las Vegas. The videos from RE+ are now out on the GWAC website. 

Jaime said he had noticed that it’s been awhile since there was a GWAC presentation at an IEEE 
conference.  He will take this on as an action. He sees the need as timely with recent changes within 
DOE.  

Action Jaime: find an opportunity for GWAC to present at an IEEE Conference. 

Shawn said that an interested group has met on the topic of Energy Star (action item). There are good 
ties for it in the building sector such as with heat pumps and outdoor air systems. Shawn is looking for 
others to participate in future meetings, and he is planning a kickoff meeting for the group. 

Those interested can drop a tag in the chat for Aaron or Jaime or Susie about your interest with Energy 
Star future work group meetings. 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

8 
 

 

Jaime intro for Bill, Chan and  

Jaime added that the new site is Mobil compatible. 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

9 
 

Drupal Capability Portfolio – Shan Osborn 

Software Engineer – Bill Gutierrez 

 

Security and standardization updates have been made. 

The old platform was difficult to maintain. 

The site menu was brought down below the logo. 

A search bar appears on every page now. 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

10 
 

 

The look and feel matches current GWAC materials. 

All meeting content is in containers which makes it more accessible for mobile phones and also for 
people with disabilities and the tools that they use. 

Events are more dynamic with more room for more details.  Outdated calendar events will drop off.  
New ones will move onto the page.  

A monthly meeting page is now available.  

- Area for meeting minutes 
- History of meeting minutes is available. 

 

Bill reviewed the GWAC member and emeritus page. 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

11 
 

 

Bill gave a Review of the publications page and sort features 

The group saw a Quick demo of the back side of the site and how to adjust members from chair to 
member to emeritus and how to update a bio, as well as other edits.  

Bill gave a demo of the Events page. Monthly meetings have their own page and are separate from 
events.  Links can take viewers to additional information.  

The Call for Candidates remains as a separate tab. 

Bill reviewed the permission page for allowing others to edit: 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

12 
 

 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

13 
 

 

Bill gave a demo of the type of analytics available and explained what options can do.  

The old web site still exists for now if we need to pull information or references.  

Bill explained that if we give someone a role on the website, we could have them create a draft 
workflow or they could just send an edit by email. The users would need to be trained in how to  use the 
platform for editing content. 

Teresa asked about the  Search Box on a page and how it works.   

Bill noted there are two types of search boxes. The one in the header is for the whole site. 

This search is for the page only: 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

14 
 

 

The old website is available for PNNL staff but not external participants. 

 

Bill explained the workflow: 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

15 
 

 

External users can submit a draft and the GWAC admins would review and edit if needed and then 
publish. 

Users would need to have an account – Bill or Shannon would add them to the site. 

 

Chair Ron Bernstein thanked everyone and said the revamped website looks fantastic. 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

16 
 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

17 
 

 

 

Jeremy Roberts commented that he was not at DERVOS and Green Button was not the host.  Jeremy 
could not go due to a conflict. But the new chair for Green Button attended.  Jeremy said that DERVOS is 
growing year after year. 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

18 
 

 

Chair Ron Bernsein will be stepping down in a year.  

Jaime noted that Vanessa Whitten with the PNNL Protocol office will be assisting with the 2026 GWAC 
Symposium. 

Shawn Chandler give an update on the Transportation Electrification paper. The group has held two 
meetings in the last four weeks. Writing assignments have gone out. They will be presenting this topic at 
the AHR in February. 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

19 
 

 

Liaison 

IEEE – Farrokh Rahimi said he is hosting a panel session at IEEE PES GM 2026 in Montreal on "Field 
Experience with Generative AI in  Electricity Grid Operations." Panelists include CAISO, EPRI, PNNL, OATI, 
and PG&E. 

Jaime told Farrokh that he will be attending the IEEE PES GM in Montreal also. 

ASHRAE – Ron Bernstein said he has been working on a project to develop a testing environment for 
back net devices. It also involves developing standard equipment profiles for specific applications and 
then having a field testing tool that allows devices to be matched to an image.  There is a lot of 
configuration that happens in the field. The tests seem to be moving forward.  The project is getting a lot 
of interest in the ASHRAE community. He’s hoping that the first test will occur in the new year.  USACE is 
looking to adopt it as a trial for some of their work.  

The testing uses a model.  You take a controller and plug into a remote access box, run it to a server and 
the server runs a test on the controller.  To do the test you do not have to be plugged into a network.   

Ron asked if anyone is interested in hearing more to let him know. He will be giving an overview 
presentation to ASHRAE soon.  

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

20 
 

 

ASHRAE - Ron Bernstein mentioned a talk that he will be giving at Alaa’s invitation to the World Energy 
Conference.   

Design Lights Consortium (DLC) – Ron Bernstein said he had no updates for DLC.  

Jaime Kolln noted it will soon be time to identify another work product for development.  Jaime asked 
the group to consider who our audience is from a high level but not the highest level.  We should have 
technical detail but not deep technical detail.  It should also be something with long term impact.  He 
asked people to start thinking about what is the  anchor technology that should be pursued?  

Peter Fitzgerald suggested Integrated Grid Planning; he sees this topic frequently and he said utilities are 
using a time horizon of 5 to 10 years. 

Jaime agreed that it might be a  good work product, but he doesn’t see it as an anchor product. He said 
GWAC has to look at the things we want to do, and what the impact is?  

Jaime said that the Council will have to decide if it fits with what we are doing.  He is also interested in 
stakeholder mapping but not sure if it could be a white paper. 

Peter Fitzgerald said his work group has discussed stakeholder mapping as a future activity. 

Matt McDonnell said he is interested in participating in a follow-up discussion on future work products.  

Jaime said a regulatory work product will be needed also and likely something on data including data 
centers, integration, interconnections, applications, generative AI.   

Jaime will send an email on this topic and will lead a discussion at the Face to Face meeting in Tampa. 

Action:  Jaime to follow up with GWAC on Future work products 

SEPA– Ron Ambrosio – the most recent meeting was mostly focused on the restructuring of working 
groups with SEPA that have merged together. There are also a couple of new groups forming. The SEPA 
staff are working hard to get things reorganized. The Grid Architecture working group and the 
Interoperability working group have merged together. And the Transactive Energy group has dissolved. 

Ron A. noted that the recent SEPA talk given by Mark Paterson was very well received. 

Ron Ambrosio also noted that he will be giving a  Graduate Seminar about GWAC Grid Architecture work 
at the University of South Florida's Dept of Electrical Engineering. He was invited to speak by the chair of 
the department 

Shawn Chandler mentioned that an order came out from the Secretary of Energy in October and there is 
still time for people to add public comment.  Congress authorized FERC to have jurisdiction over 
transmission with regard to interstate commerce and the sale of electricity, but it has to be at the 
wholesale rate.  The Commission has not exerted jurisdiction over interconnections in the past, but the 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

21 
 

secretary has said that in his view the interconnection of large loads to any interstate transmission 
system, which means any transmission system, will fall under the Commissions’ jurisdiction.  The 
jurisdiction is in the public interest. They did mention manufacturing and AI innovation as a couple of 
key topics, and so he used the authority of the Energy Organization Act to have a notice of proposed 
rulemaking and that NOPR. Shawn recalled that it was announced on Oct. 27.  Comments are already 
due. Comments will be due on the 28th.  It is docket RM26 4 – 000.  It is open on the FERC website. It is 
about ensuring timely and orderly interconnection of large loads to the transmission system.  

Ron Ambrosio said that will be a data issue. 

Jaime agreed and said that may be part of our bigger picture view. 

Aaron Snyder informed the group of the Smart Grids book that was edited by Stuart Bourleis.  They are 
now kicking off the 3rd edition. The previous version had 25 chapters.  Planning is underway on the new 
book. He has reached out to a few people already including Mark Knight, Steve Widergren and Ron 
Melton. Other topics will include smart grids, advanced technologies and solutions. They are hoping to 
get it to a draft state in six months.  This project is coordinated by ORNL. It will include a monetization 
framework. He may be able to share more as it progresses.  

Jaime asked Aaron to let him know if he wants some help with a public review or other assistance.  

Jaime brought up using CIM for asset management, and if so, he said Alex Andersen may have some 
good input for them. 

The publisher is CRC Taylor and Francis. 
 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

22 
 

 

Webinars – Jaime said we may be able to send out a live, virtual event to talk about work products and 
get some good feedback more 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

23 
 

 

Peter gave an update on this group 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

24 
 

 

Ron Ambrosio said that Mark Paterson has put together a draft version, and it has been reviewed. And 
he presented it to the SEPA Grid Architecture work group yesterday. The draft is coming along; Mark is 
still incorporating Kay’s input. 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

25 
 

 

Shawn Chandler noted that the group has held two meetings in last two weeks.  Writing assignments 
have been made and writing is in progress.  He said a draft should be ready by end of FY26 Quarter one 
and it would then go out for review. 

They are focused on sector coupling.  They will present an overview at AHR in February 2026 

ACTION Susie  to send out the template to Shawn by tomorrow and to Jaime (Done) 

 

 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

26 
 

 

 

GWAC needs a new NIST liaison and Jermey Roberts needs one for Green Button also. These groups are 
missing Mr. Dave Wollman. 

Jereme Robers noted that Green Button now has a new board and a new Vice Chair.  The Secretary 
moved to the Vice Chair position. 

Jaime will get the F2F agenda out this week and he will tell Jeremy Roberts when he can join to 
participate in the discussion. 
 

Ron Bernstein will join IEEE in communications and standards.  

Jaime said that the 1547 Revision is ongoing now – concurrent with updates to standards so they are 
aligned.  They will push 1547 so it can be released. Also, 1741 SC – test conformance and cert with UL 
has rec’d some final comments pushed by Tim at UL to get some final reviews.   



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

27 
 

Ron Bernstein – ASHRAE. Ron noted that an Interoperability and Data definition standard that he is 
working on for backnet devices, and a related app field testing tool will have a beta tester.  Backnet will 
be an ASHRAE standard.  This would enable an interoperability functional test. Ron B. will keep GWAC 
updated on the progress. USACE has some similar work.  They are trying to validate an interoperability 
profile. 

Ron B. will be presenting this to ASHRAE soon.  

Ron A. asked if this is in-situ in the field. 

Ron B. replied yes and he described the pathway.  

 

Jaime asked about USACE – Ron B. said down the road they may include this in their proposals to ensure 
interop standardization with procurements. 

SEPA – Ron Ambrosio. SEPA is merging the Grid Architecture and Interoperability working groups into 
one and the Transactive Energy group is dissolved.  There were a lot on the call yesterday for the talk by 
Mark Paterson. 

Shawn Chandler – the last grid investment task force had interesting info – US DOE Secretary on Oct 23, 
stated that Congress has authority over FERC jurisdiction over transmission – has said in his view that 
interconnection of large loads to any transmission system will fall under the commissions jurisdiction.  
Manufacturing and AI will be key topics. He used the authority of Energy something act regarding rule 
making. That was issued on Oct. 27. Comments are already due.  Reply comments are due Nov. 28.  
Docket RM264000 posted in the chat.  It’s open on FERC website. This is about timely and orderly large 
loads to the transmission system. 

New business 

Aaron will be attending at Tampa.  Peter Fitzgerald and David Forfia will not be able to attend due to 
conflicts. Ron Ambrosio will be there. Rahul Bahadur is not going to make it. Yashar has a conflict. Mark 
Knight said he probably will not make it.  

Aaron has a new book that he noted – if you want to be on the chapter team for next edition please 
reach out to Aaron. The kickoff will be next year.  Aaron has contacted some GWAC and GWAC emeritus 
about contributing to it. They are planning a ten page chapter on Transactive Energy. Aaron noted that it 
has only six pages on asset management. Jaime mentioned Alexander Anderson, PNNL, regarding assets. 
Mark Knight is interested in hearing more about it.   

• Book title is: Advanced Technologies and Solutions - CRC publisher 



 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

28 
 

 

Jaime proposed Feb. 2026 for the talk proposed by Kay Aikin and Mark Knight.  Mark said whatever date 
is best for Kay and Raymond Kaiser will work for him.  

Feb. 18 is good for Ron Ambrosio. 

Action: Schedule Raymond Kaiser (done) 

Jaime noted that 9:00 am Eastern time for Dr. Najib Dandachi’s talk at the Face to Face meeting in 
Tampa at Actalent. 

Aaron gave a link to the book: 

https://www.taylorfrancis.com/books/edit/10.1201/9781351228480/smart-grids-stuart-borlase 

https://www.taylorfrancis.com/books/edit/10.1201/9781351228480/smart-grids-stuart-borlase


 
Meeting Minutes  

Nov. 19, 2025 

29 
 

 

Chair Ron Bernstein adjourned the meeting. 

Ron Ambrosio will advertise the GWAC December meeting at Actalent to some local utilities and he will 
coordinate with host Andy Bordine.  Ron Bernstein suggested the Guest speaker time frame for Ron’s 
visitors. 

 

 


	GWAC Members
	PNNL Support

